
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Standards Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 8th April, 2021 

   

Time: 
 

 6.30 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 This will be a virtual meeting 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Judith Warner (Chairman) 
David Boothroyd 
Ian Adams 
Richard Beddoe 
Louise Hyams 
Patricia McAllister 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 This will be a virtual meeting and members of the public and 
press are welcome to follow the meeting and listen to the 
discussion via the live stream.  
 
The link to the live stream can be accessed from the meeting 
page. To access the recording please revisit the link after the 
meeting. 
 

   

  If you require any further information, please contact the 
Committee Officer, Reuben Segal, Head of Committee and 
Governance Services. 
 
Email: rsegal@westminster.gov.uk; Tel: 07890 380137 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To note any changes to the membership. 
 
To appoint a deputy chairman for the meeting. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2020. 
 

 

4.   UPDATE ON THE REVIEW OF THE MODEL CODE OF BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION 

(Pages 7 - 20) 

 Report of the Director of Law 
 

 

5.   WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKER (Pages 21 - 28) 
 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
29 March 2021 
 



 
1 

 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

Standards Committee  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a virtual meeting of the Standards Committee held on Monday 19th 
October, 2020 
 
Members Present: Councillors Judith Warner (Chairman), David Boothroyd, 
Ian Adams, Louise Hyams and Patricia McAllister 
 
Apologies for Absence: Councillor Richard Beddoe 
 
 
Also Present:  Asif Iqbal, Shajad Hussain and Elizabeth Walters (Independent 
Persons) 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 It was noted that there were no changes to the membership. 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1 There were none. 
 
3 MINUTES 
 
3.1 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020 be 

signed by the chairman as a correct record of the proceedings. 
 
4 UPDATE ON THE REVIEW OF THE MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT BY THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) 
 
4.1 The Monitoring Officer introduced the item and updated the committee on the 

timescales of the LGA review of the model code of conduct.  She stated in 
relation to the response that she had provided to the consultation that whilst 
she had not received any comments directly from members she took into 
account the views expressed by members at previous Standards Committee 
meetings.  She reported that in her Bi-Borough capacity her response as the 
monitoring officer for Westminster was not dissimilar to that which she had 
submitted for the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea. She further 
stated that there was some consensus from other monitoring officers that she 
had spoken to regarding the responses. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

 
4.2 Members then discussed the response of the Monitoring Officer to the 

consultation and made the following points: 
 

 Question 3 - In line with the Monitoring Officer’s submission, the members 
supported the use of the personal tense, as used in the code, rather than a 
passive voice. 

 

 Question 4 – With reference to the obligation not to mis-use council 
resources, members noted that the Monitoring Officer supported this 
obligation but suggested that this also included a specific requirement to 
comply with the council’s policies on the use of council supplied IT 
systems.  Members highlighted that as the City Council provides 
councillors with an IT allowance and members will often purchase one 
device which they will use for both work and personal requirements, this 
obligation presents a challenge.  The Monitoring Officer acknowledged the 
issue raised in relation to hardware but stated that members could easily 
differentiate between the use of personal email addresses and the need to 
comply with the Council’s policies when using IT systems such as Office 
365. 

 

 Question 7 - Some members suggested that the concept of not bringing 
the council into disrepute is imprecise as it is difficult to incorporate all 
possible issues that this could cover. 

 

 Question 8 - With regards to the obligation of treating other councillors and 
members of the public with civility, members agreed with the Monitoring 
Officer’s comments that the use of the word respect is a more appropriate 
term.  This was also supported by the council’s Independent Persons. 

 

 Question 15 – Members broadly supported £25 as the proposed threshold 
for registering gifts and hospitality as set out in the draft code. 

 
4.3 The Monitoring Officer was asked whether the Local Government Association 

was intending to propose that councils adopt a revised national model Code 
of Conduct.  In response, she responded that whilst the LGA is likely to make 
such a suggestion, the council, can by law, if it wishes, adopt a local element 
that meets the needs of the local authority. 

 
4.4 RESOLVED: 
 
  That the committee noted the response of the Monitoring Officer to the 

Consultation. 

 5. RESPONSE TO COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE ON 
PROGRESS MADE ON BEST PRACTICE POINTS MADE IN JANUARY 
2019. 

 
5.1 The Monitoring Officer introduced the item and updated the committee on the 

proposed response to the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) on 
the progress the Council has made in relation to implementing the best 

Page 4



 
3 

 

practice points.  With reference to Appendix 1 to the report, she advised that 
the council had implemented all of the best practice points with the exception 
of point 14 which was a work in progress.  She advised that Legal Services 
was working with the council’s Finance and Audit teams to identify the 
separate bodies that the council has set up or which they own and the extent 
to which they abide by the Nolan Principles. 

 
5.2 Members then discussed the draft proposed response of the Monitoring 

Officer to the CSPL and made the following points: 
 

 Best Practice recommendation 1:  That the council’s position response 
should reflect that a definition of intimidation as well as bullying and 
harassment has been added to the Council’s members Code of Conduct. 

 

 Best Practice recommendation 5: The committee welcomed receiving 
quarterly reminders from officers to review their register of interests and 
update them as necessary. 

 

 Best Practice recommendation 9: Members noted that the Standards 
Committee had not needed to hold any investigations alleging misconduct 
by members.  Therefore, they noted that the council’s response outlined 
how it will respond if the need arises in terms of publishing any reports and 
decisions on the outcome of hearings. 

 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 The committee noted the comments on the proposed response to the CSPL 

on the progress the Council has made in relation to implementing the best 
practice points.  Subject to amending the council’s response to best practice 
recommendation 1, to include reference to intimidation, members approved 
the response which it noted would be submitted to the CSPL by the Chief 
Executive by the 30 November deadline. 

6 MEMBER COMPLAINTS - ANNUAL REPORT 
 
6.1 Hazel Best, Principal Solicitor, introduced the report which provided details of 

complaints against members of the Council, since the last report to the 
Committee.  

 
6.2 The Principal Solicitor was asked how the number of complaints against 

councillors over the period compared with those at other local authorities.  
She was also asked whether there were any lessons that could be learned 
from the complaints that had been received that could be eliminated through 
the inclusion of additional training at future member development sessions. 

 
6.3  Hazel Best stated that following conversations with officers at other local 

authorities she believed that the council was at the lower end of the spectrum 
in terms of the number of complaints received against councillors.  She 
highlighted that many of the complaints received did not meet the test of a 
breach of the Members Code of Conduct but instead related to the perception 
from the individual about how they had been spoken to by the councillor.  She 

Page 5



 
4 

 

agreed that further emphasis on this issue would be covered at future member 
training on the Code of Conduct. 

 
 RESOLVED:  
 
 The committee noted the outcomes of the complaints raised in the report 

since the last update to the Committee. 
 
7 WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKER 
 
7.1 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the revised work programme and action tracker be noted. 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 7.20 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 
 

Page 6



1 

 

 

Standards Committee 

 

 

Meeting or Decision Maker: Standards Committee 

Date: 8 April 2021 

Classification: General Release 

Title: Local Government Association model 

code of conduct 

Report of:  Tasnim Shawkat, Monitoring Officer  

 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1. The Government’s Advisory Committee, the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life (CSPL) published a report in January 2019 
entitled “Local Government Ethical Standards”. The report contained 
a number of recommendations and identified a number of best 
practice recommendations. The Standards Committee have already 
considered and noted the recommendations.  

1.2. The majority of the proposed changes required primary legislation 
which would be subject to parliamentary timetabling, secondary 
legislation and revisions to the Local Government Transparency 
Code. The primary legislation has not been forthcoming to date.  

1.3. One key recommendation of the CSPL report was that the Local 
Government Association (LGA) should create an updated model 
code of conduct in consultation with representative bodies of 
councillors and officer of all tiers of local government.  

1.4. The Committee considered the consultation response by the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer at its meeting on 19 October 2020. On 
3 December 2020 the LGA published the Model Code of Councillor 
conduct with a recommendation for adoption for all local authorities  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. The Committee considers the LGA model code of conduct and 
consider if any changes should be made to the Council’s existing 
Code of Conduct for members. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

3. Background information 

 
3.1. This is a voluntary code and there is no legal requirement to adopt 

it. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole and / or with local 
amendments. A link to the LGA model code of conduct is provided,  
at Appendix one. 

 

3.2 The LGA states the code has been designed to protect the 

democratic role, encourage good conduct and safeguard the 

public’s trust in local government.  

3.3  Attached at Appendix two is a table comparing the LGA model code 

of conduct with the Council’s existing code of conduct for members. 

Much of the substance contained in the Model Code is also covered 

in the Council’s current Code of Conduct. A main difference 

between the Codes is the language used. The Model Code is 

written in the first person and encouraged much more ownership by 

individual councillor. Section 8 of the Model Code expressly refers 

to Councillors refers to Councillors undertaking code of conduct 

training, cooperating with investigations and agreeing to any 

sanctions. There is some debate amongst Monitoring Officers on 

whether the Model code correctly mirrors the law with respect to 

councillors acting in a private capacity. 

3.4 Some of the CSPL also made recommendations which will require a 

change in legislation. These are highlighted in yellow in the table at 

appendix two of the report. 

 

4. Financial Implications 

4.1. There are no financial implications for this report.  

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 The principal statutory provisions relating to standards of conduct for 
Members are contained in the Localism Act 2011. Section 27(1) of 
the 2011 Act provides that the Council must promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by Members and Co-opted Members of 
the authority.  

   5.2   Sections 27 and 28 of the Localism Act require the Council to adopt 
a Code of Conduct consistent with the Nolan principles of good 
governance and to appoint at least one Independent Person whose 
views must be sought and taken into account before the Council 
makes any decision about an alleged breach of the Code that has 
been investigated.  

  5.3 There is no obligation by the Council to adopt a particular model of 
the Code of Conduct. The statutory duty is to adopt a code of 

 

Page 8



3 

 

conduct which complies with the statutory requirements referred to 
in paragraph 5.2. 

5.4     The Council must publicise its adoption, revision or replacement of a 
code of conduct in such manner as it considers likely  to bring the 
adoption, revision or replacement of the code of conduct to the 
attention of persons who live in its area,  

 

Appendix One 

 

Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020 (local.gov.uk) 

 

Appendix Two 

 

Table comparing the WCC code of conduct with the LGA model code of conduct. 

If you have any queries about this report please contact: Hazel Best, 
Principal Lawyer, Bi-Borough Legal Services, Email: 

hbest@westminster.gov.uk 

 

Page 9

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Model%20Councillor%20Code%20of%20Conduct%202020%20V2%200121.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
WESTMINSTER CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
LGA MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT 

General observations 

The terms “Councillor” and “Co-Opted Member” are not 
defined. 
 
 

The term Councillor is defined as ‘a Member or Co-opted member of a local authority or a 
directly elected mayor’ pursuant to Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 (pg 2 of the Model 
Code). 

WCC Council approved a social media policy in June 2019. This 
is not part of the Councillor’s code of conduct 
 
Appendix 1 - Draft guidance on the use of social media by 
members.pdf (westminster.gov.uk) 
 

The New Model Code specifically applies to ‘electronic and social media communication, 
posts, statements and comments’ (in the Application Section on pg 4 of the Model Code). 

 The Government continues to consider the recommendations made by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life in their report on Local Government Ethical Standards. If the 
Government chooses to implement any of the recommendations, this could require a 
change to this Code. The recommendations cover: 
• Recommendations for changes to the Localism Act 2011 to clarify in law when the Code 
of Conduct applies 
• The introduction of sanctions 
• An appeals process through the Local Government Ombudsman 
• Changes to the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
• Updates to the Local Government Transparency Code 
• Changes to the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person 
• That the criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests should be abolished 

No update in relation to timescales 

P
age 11

https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s33011/Appendix%201%20-%20Draft%20guidance%20on%20the%20use%20of%20social%20media%20by%20members.pdf
https://committees.westminster.gov.uk/documents/s33011/Appendix%201%20-%20Draft%20guidance%20on%20the%20use%20of%20social%20media%20by%20members.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report


 General conduct 

Paragraph 9 WCC Code of Conduct 
 
To value and respect colleagues, staff, partners and the public, 
engaging with them in an appropriate manner that underpins 
the mutual respect between them that is essential to good local 
government, and not to act in  a manner that could be deemed 
to be bullying, harassment or intimidation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Respect 
As a councillor: 
1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect. 
1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of 
partner organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and res
pect the role they play. 

Respect means politeness and courtesy in 
behaviour, speech, and in the written word. Debate and having different views are all 
part of a healthy democracy. As 
a councillor, you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, 
opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, 
however, subject individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack. 
In your contact with the public, 
you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and offensive behaviour lowers the p
public’s expectations and confidence in councillors. 

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of th
e public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you 
are entitled to stop any conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to 
the local authority, the relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to 
fellow councillors, where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of 
of Conduct, and local authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with th
e local authority’s councillor-officer protocol. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12



Paragraph 9 of WCC code  
 
To value and respect colleagues, staff, partners and the public, 
engaging with them in an appropriate manner that underpins 
the mutual respect between them that is essential to good local 
government, and not to act in  a manner that could be deemed 
to be bullying, harassment or intimidation.  

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination 
As a councillor: 
2.1 I do not bully any person. 
2.2 I do not harass any person. 
2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any person. 

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying 
as offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of 
power through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullyin
g might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on 
social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social 
events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes 
alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence 
and must involve such conduct on at least two occasions. It 
can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and contact upon a p
erson in 
a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable person. 

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a 
protected characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of 
a person's identity defined by the Equality Act 
2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation. 

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central 
role to play 
in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance and strate
gic aims, and that there is 
a strong vision and public commitment to equality across public services. 

P
age 13



There is a separate councillor/ officer protocol in the WCC 
constitution 
 
Paragraph 3 WCC code 
 
 To make all decisions on merit when carrying out public duties, 
such as making public appointments, awarding contracts or 
recommending individuals for rewards or benefits. 
 
 

3. Impartiality of officers of the council 

As a councillor: 

3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who 
works for, or on behalf of, the local authority. 

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they 
are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that 
would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for 
example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report 
that they have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, 
change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their 
professional integrity. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 14



Paragraph 8 WCC code 
 
To behave in accordance with all legal obligations, alongside 
any requirements contained within the City Council’s policies, 
protocols and procedures, including on the use of the Council’s 
resources and dealing with confidential information 
appropriately.  
 
Paragraph 1 WCC code 
 
 To act solely in the public interest and never to improperly 
confer or seek to confer an advantage or disadvantage on any 
person or act to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, friends or close associates.  

4. Confidentiality and access to information 

As a councillor: 

4.1 I do not disclose information: 
a) given to me in confidence by anyone 
b) acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential 
nature, unless 
i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
ii. I am required by law to do so; 
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional legal 
advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or 
iv. the disclosure is: 
1. reasonable and in the public interest; and 
2. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the local 
authority; and 
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its release. 

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a councillor 
for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members, my employer or my 
business interests. 

4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by law. 

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed 
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You 
should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that 
discussions, documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority 
must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to 
individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations. 

P
age 15



Paragraph 4 WCC code 
 
 To be accountable for their decisions to the public and to co-
operate fully with whatever scrutiny is required. (LGA 6) 
 
Paragraph 5 WCC code 
 
To be open and as transparent as possible about decisions and 
actions and the decisions and actions of the City Council and to 
give reasons for those decisions and actions  
 
Paragraph 10 WCC code 
 
To promote and support high standards of conduct through 
leadership and by example, including not acting in a manner 
which could be seen to bring the Council or the role of the 
Councillor into disrepute.  
 

5. Disrepute 

As a councillor: 

5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute. 

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your 
actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the 
public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other 
councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in your or 
your local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s functions. For example, behaviour that is 
considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute. 

You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to 
constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken 
by the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 

 
Paragraph 1 WCC code 
 
To act solely in the public interest and never to improperly 
confer or seek to confer an advantage or disadvantage on any 
person or act to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, friends or close associates.  
 
Paragraph 2 WCC code 
 
 Not to place themselves under a financial or other obligation to 
any individual or organisation that might seek to influence them 
in the performance of their official duties. 

 
6. Use of position 

As a councillor: 

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or 
disadvantage of myself or anyone else. 

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, 
responsibilities, and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others. 
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or 
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly. 

P
age 16



Paragraph 7 of WCC code 
 
 When using or authorising the use by others of the resources 
of the City Council , to ensure that such resources are not used 
improperly for political purposes (including party political 
purposes) and to have regard to any applicable Local Authority 
Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.  
 

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities 

As a councillor: 

7.1 I do not misuse council resources. 
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local or authorising their use by others: 
 a) act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and 
 b) ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless that use could 
reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the 
functions of the local authority or of the office to which I have been elected or 
appointed. 

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in 
carrying out your duties as a councillor. 

Examples include: 
• office support 
• stationery 
• equipment such as phones, and computers 
• transport 
• access and use of local authority buildings and rooms. 
  
These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and 
are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with 
the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies 
regarding their use. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



 
No equivalent paragraph in the WCC code. 
 
Annual training is arranged for Members in relation to the 
Code of Conduct and the arrangements for investigating 
complaints 

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct 

As a Councillor: 

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority. 
8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination. 
8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be involved 
with the administration of any investigation or proceedings. 
8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have breached 
the Code of Conduct. 

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to 
have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local 
authority or its governance.  If you do not understand or are concerned about the local 
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



 Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority 

Paragraph 6 WCC code 
 
 To register and declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and 
to declare non-disclosable pecuniary interests and non-
pecuniary interests, as set out in this Code.  
 

9. Interests 

As a councillor: 

9.1 I register and disclose my interests. 

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority. 

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow 
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The 
register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The 
register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be 
held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should 
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others 
think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about 
any interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or 
taking part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. 
This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is 
maintained. 

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set 
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in 
doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

P
age 19



 
WCC code sets the threshold for registering gifts at a value in 
excess of £25  

10. Gifts and hospitality 

As a councillor: 

10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which could give 
rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable suspicion of influence on my 
part to show favour from persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the 
local authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any permission, 
licence or other significant advantage. 

10.2 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an estimated value 
of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt. 

10.3 I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or hospitality that I have 
been offered but have refused to accept. 

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should 
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably 
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always 
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a 
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must 
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality 
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends 
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and 
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your 
Monitoring Officer for guidance. 
 

 

P
age 20



 

 

 
Standards Committee  
 
 

Date: 
 

8 April 2021 
 

Classification: 
 

For General Release 
 

Title: 
 

Work Programme 2021-2022  
 

Report of: 
 

Tasnim Shawkat, Monitoring Officer 
 

Financial Summary:  
 

There are no financial implications arising from 
this report 
 

Report Author and Contact 
Details: 
 

Reuben Segal, Head of Committee and 
Governance Services 
Email: rsegal@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 Members are asked to review the proposed work programme for 2021-2022 set out as 

appendix 2 to the report and identify any other items it wishes to include to it. 
 
1.2 An Action Tracker to monitor any decisions/action requests is attached at appendix 3. 
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 That, having regard to the Committee’s Terms of Reference attached as appendix 1 of this 

report the Committee indicate any further items it wishes to be added to its future Work 
Programme. 

 
3.        Background Information 
 
3.1 The production of a work programme is to enable the Committee to review and update its 

forthcoming work plan at each of its meetings.   
 
3.2 In order to ensure the Committee undertakes its work programme, at the request of the 

Chairman, 3 meetings per annum have been programmed. 
 
3.3 An Action Tracker to monitor any action requests from previous meetings is attached to this 

report. 
 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

mailto:rsegal@westminster.gov.uk


 

 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of 
the background papers, please contact:  

Reuben Segal, Head of Committee and Governance Services  
rsegal@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers:  None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 22

mailto:rsegal@westminster.gov.uk


STANDARDS COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

CONSTITUTION 
 
6 Members of the Council, 4 Majority Party Members and 2 Minority Party Member. 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
(1) To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the Members and Co-

opted Members of the City Council. 
 
(2) To advise the City Council on the adoption or revision of a Code of Conduct for 

Members. 
 
(3) Advising, training or arranging to train Members and Co-opted Members on 

matters relating to the City Council’s Code of Conduct for Members. 
 
(4) To assist Members and Co-opted Members observe the City Council’s Code of 

Conduct for Members. 
 
(5) To monitor the operation of Code of Conduct for Members. 
 
(6) Consider reports referred to the Committee by ethical standards officers or the 

Monitoring Officer of investigations into alleged breaches of the City Council’s 
Code of Conduct for Members. 

 
(7)      Where necessary, to conduct hearings into allegations of breaches of the said 

code, and interview officers, Members and others as required. 
 
(8) Determining whether allegations of breaches of the said code are made out and 

determining what action, if any, to take in relation hereto including, where it is 
determined that a breach has occurred, deciding what sanctions, if any, should 
be applied in relation to the Member or Member concerned (and for the 
avoidance of doubt, the Committee shall only have power to impose any sanction 
authorised by law). 

 
(9) Consider any complaints in respect of Members referred to the Committee under 

the City Council’s “Whistleblowing” procedure and determining the action to be 
taken, if any. 

 
(10) To the extent allowed by the Law, granting dispensations in relation to Member 

and co-opted Member interests as referred to in the Members Code of Conduct. 
 
(11)    To consider, advise and, if appropriate, take action upon other Member conduct 

issues not otherwise dealt with under these terms of reference. 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

1 July 2021 
 

Annual Q&A with the 

Leader of the council 

on Ethical Standards 

 

 

To submit questions to the Leader of the Council 
on Ethical standards in relation to Members 

-  

Update on the Member 

Development 

Programme 

 

To receive an update on the new Member 
Development Programme including: 
 

- Better advanced notice of training events 
- more visible and better information on the 

relevance of specific training 
- Member feedback on recent training 

including digital working including 
remote/hybrid meetings 

 

Janis Best 

Changes to the 

Council’s Members 

Model Code of 

Conduct  

To receive a report setting out possible changes 
to the Council’s Member Code of Conduct in 
response to the review of the model Code of 
Conduct by the LGA  

Tasnim 

Shawkat 

 

4 November 2021 
 

Annual Update on 

Member Complaints  

 

To receive a report on complaints against 
members 

Tasnim 

Shawkat 

   

 

7 April 2022 
 

Bi-annual Standards 

Committee Report 

 

To consider a report on the work of the committee 
since March 2020. 

Janis Best 

 

Work Programme 2020/21 

Standards Committee 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE ACTION TRACKER 
ACTIONS: 19 October 2020 

 
 

 
ACTION 

 

 
OUTCOME 

 
LEAD OFFICER 

5 RESPONSE TO COMMITTEE ON 
STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE ON 
PROGRESS MADE ON BEST 
PRACTICE POINTS MADE IN 
JANUARY 2019. 

 

  

The Committee requested that the Council’s 
response on progress made on the best 
practice points is amended to include 
reference to intimidation in relation to 
recommendation 1, before the response is 
submitted by the 30 November 2020 deadline. 

 

This was included and 
submitted to the CSPL in 
advance of the deadline. 

Stuart Love 

6 MEMBER COMPLAINTS - ANNUAL 
REPORT 

 

  

The Committee requested that future member 
training sessions on the code of conduct 
include an emphasis around issues of 
perception when engaging and responding to 
residents. 

This will be incorporated in 
the future member code of 
conduct training sessions. 

Tasnim Shawkat/ 
Hazel Best/ 
Janis Best 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Update on the Review of the Model Code of by the Local Government Association
	LGA model code of conduct v WCC code of conduct

	5 Work Programme and Action Tracker
	Appendix 1 - Terms of Reference
	Appendix 2 - Work Programme 2021-22
	Appendix 3 - Action Tracker


